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NOTICE OF MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 88TH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF MEMBERS OF THE REMUERA GOLF CLUB INC WILL 
BE ON SITE ON MONDAY 12TH OF DECEMBER, 2022 AT 7PM.

AGENDA ITEMS
1. Club Captain’s | Chairman of the Board of Management Address

2. General Managers Address

3. Formal Business Items

 a.    Approval of Minutes of the 2021 Annual General Meeting
 b.    Matters arising from the Minutes of the 2021 Annual General Meeting
 c.    Adoption of the Annual Report and Financial Statements
 d.    Election of the Officers
 e.    Appointment of the Auditor

The Board of Management moves that the RSM Hayes Audit be appointed as Auditor  
for the 2022/2023 Financial Year.

4. General Business

Ian Braddock
Club Captain
Chairman – Board of Management 
4th December 2022

Member Categories entitled to vote:

Life, Honorary, Full Playing, 18 Hole, Weekday, 9 Hole, Flexi, Veteran and Intermediate.
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD I AM PLEASED TO PRESENT THE 2022 ANNUAL REPORT.

 It has been a successful year, not without challenges 
but pleasingly with increased member activity across 
the course and other areas of the club. Also, during 
the year significant progress was made planning and 
taking actions that will have benefits for members 
in the future years, including on the golf course, in 
Winstones and the overall membership experience.

The trend of members wanting to play more golf 
has continued. Covid continued to affect us largely 
during the first half of year and we had 6 weeks 
impacted by Covid level restrictions. Pressure 
accessing the course including through the booking 
system continued during the year but eased slightly 
later in the year. During the year we made changes 
to our fair usage policy including limiting the number 
of bookings a member may have in an attempt to be 
more equitable to all members. We will continue 
to carefully monitor this complex balancing act 
between course access, fairness across members 
and the related issues of the optimal number of 
members, categories and playing times.

The club presently has 1,445 playing members. 
We have continued our membership policy of 
keeping overall numbers broadly constant, giving 
entry priority to family members, intermediates 
and some declining women categories. Some of 
the new members had restricted playing rights 
and also were intermediates who play significantly 
less rounds on average, both assisting in improved 
overall course access.

The uptick in golf in NZ and worldwide has also 
benefitted us and we are fortunate to have a waiting 
list, despite the issues that come with it. However, 
many in the industry believe the pre-Covid long term 
trend of decline in golf will eventuate and we take 
nothing for granted

in this regard. Work is being done and will continue 
into next year to establish our vision for membership 
in the next 5 to 10 years and to design a programme 
of work to get us to the desired future state. 
Underpinning this work will be our values and 
strategic ambitions. Put simply this will facilitate us 
to become the very best club we can be. 

Our club operations have had a successful year 
despite some challenges. While we haven’t had 
a full year of driving range operations it has been 
fantastic to see the diverse range of people who 
are supporting the range, including as a pathway 
into golf, for practice, socialisation and events. 
The range has more than exceeded our original 
expectations and is projected to provide a significant 
part of our financial surplus this coming year. I’d 
especially like to highlight the 480 school aged girls 
who participated in a ‘give golf a go’ programme 
recently which was funded by a grant from Aktive 
Auckland. To put this in perspective there are only 
approximately 250 total registered junior female 
golfers in the whole of Auckland. Talk about growing 
the future of the sport!

Winstones has served members well. The entire 
hospitality sector in New Zealand has had a 
challenging few years with a shortage of staff, 
heavy operating restrictions and increasing 
food costs. Despite all of this we have managed 
to remain open every day and with hours well 
beyond what a commercial operation would do. I 
am pleased to report over 80 per cent of members 
are satisfied or extremely satisfied with the overall 
experience at Winstones as reported in the recent 
member survey. Last year I signalled a major 
upgrade of the kitchen area and the planning for 
this is well advanced with work being planned for 
mid-2023.This will allow us to significantly improve 
food offerings and service times.

The retail outlet remains a hive of activity. Like all 
retail businesses globally we experienced supply 
chain issues which resulted in uncertainty and 
inconstancy around the arrival of stock. Being in 
the fortunate position of running the shop as a 
member service we took decisions to keep stock 
levels healthy ensuring we didn’t run out of stock and 
members continue to have access to items.

The launch of the club fitting studio this year means 
members now have access to truly world class fitting 
and this is undoubtedly the most advanced fitting set 
up in New Zealand. Members can access club fitting 
at no cost as part of their membership while still 
receiving the most competitive prices in the market 
on their custom fit clubs through our generous 
member rebate scheme. 

The club has had a successful financial year and 
remains in a healthy financial position.

In the past year our surplus including finance costs 
and before depreciation was $748,371   (budget 
$958,000 ) and after depreciation a small deficit of 
$48,910 (budget $128,000 surplus) The driving range 
produced over 50% of this surplus. This is a pleasing 
result considering Covid closedowns, staffing 
challenges and cost increases during the year.

Our balance sheet remains stable. While we have 
repaid some debt during the year I note we have 
several tranches of member loans due for repayment 
or rollover in the coming year. I would like to thank 
those members who have demonstrated their 
support for the club through these loans in the past.

For the coming year we are budgeting a surplus 
before depreciation of $874,940 and $24,940 after 
depreciation. This assumes no significant Covid or 
similar impacts.

We have ambitious plans to further improve the 
course and our facilities and this requires funding. 
Looking further afield we can see these surpluses 
continuing and these will allow us to finance 
ongoing course development and drainage work, 
premises upgrades and other necessary Capex 
without further debt.

During the year it was pleasing to commence the 
implementation our new greens grasses policy with 
the turf nurseries well established and the planned 
transplants of six greens in the near future. Most 
importantly we also made significant progress 
in deciding and the planning for the finalising of 
the course masterplan. This is covered in more 
detail in the course report including the member 
consultation process.

Members will need no reminding we had a wet 
winter including two record breaking rainfall 
months this year, July and November. While the 
earlier redeveloped holes with drainage performed 
reasonably well it has demonstrated the need to 
develop the six remaining holes including the 9th 
and 10th, fairways which were heavily affected.  We 
are now in a position to undertake this as well as 
some additional drainage work on completed holes 
and continue extending cart paths. This work on the 
course will cause some disruption to golf in the near 
term which the team will minimise as best they can 
– the benefit will be a better-quality course which is
playable more often.

Congratulations to our Club Champions and other 
competition and trophy winners, despite severe 
disruption to our playing program during the year. 

Our thanks to our GM Chris Davies, his senior 
management team and all staff for their loyalty and 
commitment during the year including meeting 
the challenges presented to them in a positive and 
confident manner.

Also, thanks to the board, committee chairs and 
members and all our volunteers including Dads Army 
for their service to the club. Particular thanks to our 
retiring women’s captain Wendy Williams for her 
contribution to both the board and women’s golf for 
the past two years. We are fortunate to have a large 
number of members who generously give their time 
and expertise because they want to make our club a 
better one.

Our club is in an extremely positive position; we have 
a healthy membership, capable leaders in the team, 
well developed plans to significantly improve the 
course, long term financial security and the respect 
of our community and the wider NZ golfing fraternity. 

My thanks to all members for contributing to this and 
making our club one we can be proud of.

Ian Braddock 

Club Captain and Chairman of the Board

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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The third place describes an informal gathering 
place that serves members and their community. 
While home is your first place and work is your 
second place, third places are relaxed social 
environments where you catch up with friends and 
meet new people. It’s a safe, friendly, welcoming 
place to visit regularly. 

When we set this strategy, we had no idea how 
hyper local our lives were about to become and 
how highly relevant this concept would be. We 
have all craved community connections through 
the pandemic and golf has experienced a revival. 
Newcomers are coming into the game, existing 
golfers are playing much more, and those who 
once played but left for a while are returning. 

This is all great news, and the even better news 
is how fantastically prepared we were to make 
the most of this once in a generation opportunity. 
Rather than us slowly moving forward, the 
pandemic combined with the completion of our 
new facility has introduced vibrancy to the club 
which will set us up for success for the future 
generation of golfers. 

Pleasingly, despite COVID disruptions the club 
experienced high levels of member engagement 
and performed well on key financial measures. 

We have been delighted to see that over 96 
per cent of all rounds on the golf course have 
been member rounds. The coaching team have 
delivered more than 2,100 hours of coaching and 
24 per cent of Velocity range use is by members. 

This is the first year we are hosting the Festival 
of Golf. The programme is designed with a great 
variety of formats including social and competitive 
elements to suit members of all abilities and 
inclinations. We are delighted that members have 
embraced the week and competitions are all filling 
rapidly. As a place to learn and play golf, on any 
measure we are roaring. 

Our strategy focuses us on delivering members a 
superb club experience and our people structure 
to support that focus which we implemented last 
year has bedded in well over the last 12 months. 
We have quality leadership in place and our people 
strategy continues to be concentrated on getting 
the right people with the capability to execute at 
the high level the team and members expect. 

Turning to the external environment, 2022 saw 
significant economic and geopolitical change and 
I know it has affected many of you. While we are 
now living with COVID-19, a new challenge has 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
BACK IN 2019 WE SET THE THIRD PLACE STRATEGY. THIS STRATEGY IS ALL ABOUT 
ENSURING OUR CLUB IS DESIGNED TO THRIVE – NOW AND IN THE FUTURE.

emerged with the global economy entering a period 
of high inflation, with central banks responding 
with a fast increase in interest rates globally. The 
effects of these changes have already begun to be 
felt by the club with rapid rise of costs in many of the 
items required for course maintenance. While we 
continue to work diligently to keep costs down this 
creates a degree of uncertainty. 

The driving range has begun to return good 
income to the club which even in these uncertain 
times will allow us to make progress on the course 
master plan. You can read more information about 
this on page 8.  

Works planned for the kitchen next year will support 
the club to provide a greater variety of food and 
beverage options and improve service times for 
members. These works have been needed for some 
time and it is great to be making forward progress. 

While we are excited about the future of the club, 
we are thrilled that we are launching a programme 
of work in 2023 to capture the history of the 
club and the site. Project Legacy will allow us 
to celebrate and share history in a meaningful 
way. This placemaking project will help us 
strengthen the connection between members of 
all generations and the community by telling the 
wonderful stories about our past and the land. 
Thank you to Barry Hall, Allan McSkimming, Lorna 
Reid, Barry Ambridge, John Rainger, Ewen Miln 
and Peter Healey who undertook the first step in 
the project by sharing their stories. 

Lastly, I am proud of the team and grateful for their 
efforts this year. I would like to thank all members, 
this place is like no other, it is a dynamic exuberant 
club with a joyful feel which is only possible 
because members make it so. 

 Chris Davies
General Manager

IN MEMORIAM
We record with sadness the passing 
of the following Members:
Russell Campbell, Denis Danaher, 
Bruce Fergusson, Mark Franklin, 
Pamela MacFarlane, Alan McDougall, 
Richard Posa
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“THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF THE RANGE IS A 
PRIME EXAMPLE. 
VELOCITY IS A GREAT 
ASSET FOR THE 
CLUB. IT IS A SOCIAL 
GATHERING PLACE 
THAT ADDS A FUN, 
VIBRANCY TO OUR 
OFFERING.

IT’S A UNIQUE 
SPACE FOR US TO 
WELCOME IN OTHERS 
FROM OUTSIDE 
OF OUR CURRENT 
MEMBERSHIP TO 
SHOWCASE WHAT  
WE OFFER.”

Membership here has been an integral part of 
life for both myself and Cecily. We have formed 
valuable friendships here which is easy, when you 
look at the wonderful welcoming nature of our 
club community. 

This club is about so much more than just golf. It 
is a vibrant, magic place to be a member, develop 
life-long friendships and has been the preferred 
place for us to socialise. We have had so much fun 
here, within and outside of the game. We engage 
in many aspects of club life and I’m proud to 
identify myself as a life member. 

I loyally support the ongoing progress of the club 
and fully back the management team who are 
bringing the club into the present through good 
decisions that both benefit the members and 
reinforce a healthy future. I believe you must be 
progressive and be forward looking. 

The development of the range is a prime example. 
Velocity is a great asset for the Club. It is a social 
gathering place that adds a fun, vibrancy to our 
offering. It’s a unique space for us to welcome in 
others from outside of our current membership to 
showcase what we offer. 

Golf is currently on trend. Velocity allows a 
diverse group of people to come and experience 
our club in a way they haven’t been able to 
previously. Younger players are the future of our 
club, so the more of them the better. They are the 
foundation for future life-long golfers and club 
members. 

I love being involved in a sport I can still feel 
passionate about. I enjoy playing a competitive 
18 H but valued being able to pivot to a 9 H 
game when I had some recent health issues. It 
is wonderful that the club offers so many ways 
to enjoy the game, meaning that juniors through 
to seniors can all be catered for. Just get a good 
swing! You are never too old – you can play until 
the day you die. 

The heart of RGC encompasses sport, 
conversation, recreation and connection. 
Winstones is where many sit, chat and solve the 
world’s problems. I love coming up here, another 
familiar place, like home. 

THE CLUB PROVIDES A VENUE FOR 
OVERALL WELL-BEING, FOR ALL 
PEOPLE, ACROSS ALL AGES. FROM 
BEING OUT IN THE FRESH AIR, WALKING 
AND PLAYING THE GAME THROUGH TO 
MEETING UP WITH FRIENDS.

THERE IS NO PLACE I’D RATHER BE. 

.

John Rainger
Club Patron & Life Member

PATRON'S REPORT & UPDATE
RGC MEANS EVERYTHING TO ME. I AM PROUD OF WHAT I AND MY WIDER FAMILY 
HAVE CONTRIBUTED TO THE CLUB OVER THE YEARS.
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OUR VISION - BE THE ‘THIRD PLACE’ 
FOR MEMBERS AND VISITORS
OUR PURPOSE 
Provide a golfing and social environment that is safe inclusive, welcoming, and relaxed, with a range 
of activities and opportunities for members and visitors.

OUR STRATEGY IN ACTION 
A PLACE TO LEARN AND PLAY - GOLF EXPERIENCES

• 2100 + coaching hours
• Over 480 girls aged 5 to 18 participate in our girls' futures golf program
• 36,445 rounds of 18-hole golf
• 18,221 rounds of 9-hole golf
• 96% of all rounds played by members
• 24% of all range use is by members.

A PLACE TO SOCIALISE – OFF COURSE CLUB EXPERIENCES 

• 650 members use Winstones monthly
• More than 12,000 visits to the club each month
• Two of the most important things to members' club experience is to have fun 

and to socialise with friends.

A PLACE FOR WELLBEING – HEALTH AND WELLNESS 

• 182,222 hours of walking has taken place on the course by golfers
• Healthy options in the café – rejuvenating the menu
• Development reward and recognition framework
• All family members on the waiting list have been offered membership

(except 18-hole men).

-RGC-

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

UNDERPINNING PRINCIPLES 
These principles support Remuera (RGC) as the 
third place for all who visit 

(first place = home, second place = work)

• Considered and measured short and longer
term financial outcomes

• Strong and sustainable business, 
environmental and social practices

• Mutually beneficial stakeholder partnerships 
e.g. members, our employees our community,
our visitors including enhancement of our 
relationship with and understanding of local 
iwi Ngāti Whātua Ōrākei and their values

• A positive culture that encourages diversity
and inclusion 

• The best use of innovation and technologies
• Good governance and leadership practices
• Excellent and competent staffing appointments

are made across all portfolios
• Support and development opportunities for the

staff team
• Clear and transparent communication to 

maximise member and staff engagement and
involvement.

A PLACE  
FOR YOUR 

WELLBEING

A PLACE  
TO LEARN AND 

PLAY GOLF

A PLACE TO 
BELONG AND 

SOCIALISE
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“WITH THESE 
EXCITING NEW WAYS 
OF THINKING THE RGC 
BOARD HAVE GIVEN 
CLEAR INSTRUCTION 
TO THE COURSE 
TECHNICAL GROUP TO 
COMPLETE A REVIEW 
AND REFRESH 
OF THE CURRENT 
MASTERPLAN.”

Over time the game of golf and the needs of members have evolved. 18-hole golf is the foundation and 
will be the anchor of any enhancements to the existing masterplan, but we also have the opportunity to 
include flexibility in the design to future proof the course and to provide members with options to enjoy 
different types of golf.

Other factors have become increasingly important to enjoyable club play, such having a layout / set up 
which enables a reasonable pace of play, being able to support the adequate activity levels required of a 
busy club environment and resilience to climate change (longer drier periods and larger more frequent 
rainfall events).

Health and safety are priorities, along with providing a parkland experience and the promotion and 
enhancement of environmental sustainability.

With these exciting new ways of thinking the RGC board has given clear instruction to the course 
technical group to complete a review and refresh of the current masterplan that was developed and 
adopted in 2005, including the final six holes still to be developed. 

The group have started this review in earnest this year and there is great enthusiasm to make good 
forward progress. Presently both the timeline and budget have been scoped for four phases of work 
to deliver the project. There is still work taking place to finalise some of the finer details with both the 
committee, board, and professional independent consultants and we will share the details with members 
early next year as part of our engagement plan.

COURSE MASTER PLAN
SINCE THE 2005 ADOPTION OF THE COURSE MASTER PLAN REMUERA GOLF 
CLUB HAS BEEN STRATEGICALLY MOVING FORWARD PIECE-BY-PIECE TO 
PROVIDE A GOLF COURSE WHICH IS MORE PLAYABLE, MORE OFTEN, AND FIT 
FOR PURPOSE FOR MEMBERS.

THE CURRENT COURSE 
MASTERPLAN WAS DEVELOPED IN 
2004 AND ADOPTED IN 2005. SINCE 
THAT TIME THE CLUB HAS COMPLETED 
12 OF THE 18 HOLES OF THE PLAN.

OBJECTIVE 
To complete a review of, and refresh the current 
masterplan, including the remaining six holes 
and replace with a new masterplan that will be 
the foundation document and form part of club 
masterplan. 
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REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

 STEPS TAKEN:
1st Quarter 2022
• Desk based research undertaken, information gathering on trends and

motivation for golf, state of golf globally, nationally and at RGC, other 
factors to review.

2nd Quarter 2022
• Form workshop group, ensuring a diverse mix of golfers are represented

– To review information and workshop to develop a brief for course
architect to conduct a review. 

3rd Quarter 2022
• Course architect presents first findings of review. Workshop group review

findings and present feedback.

4th Quarter 2022
• Course architect present alternative options based on feedback. 

Workshop group to review and make recommendations to the board.

MOVING FORWARD
1st Quarter 2023
• Board reviews recommendations
• Commence member engagement process on refreshed course

masterplan.

2nd Quarter 2023
• Member engagement process concludes.

End of 2nd Quarter 2023 
• Adoption of refreshed masterplan
• Finalise phasing and timing of course masterplan works.

2023 – 2028 
Course masterplan works – Indicative implementation 4 phases of work 
spread over 5 years

Prioritise first nine hole works to weather proof course and complete  
nine holes.

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST $3.7M - $4M

TO SUMMARISE
Why Renew Plan 
• Health & safety
• Enhance quality – all year-round quality playing surfaces
• Playability – time, ideally ensure a round of golf can be played in under

four hours
• Positive economics of off-course, drives investment, cost to sustain 

increasing – find the balance and interface between off-course golf and
on-course golf

• Add variety and stimulate interest
• Retain existing and attract new members.

AT THE END...
• Presentation | Playability | Quality critical elements
• Top club course in NZ
• Completes the design (finish six holes)
• Family friendly & inclusive
• Climate change – resilient to longer drier periods (improve water storage

in the lakes) and larger intense rainfall events (drainage and overland 
flows)

• Environmentally sustainable
• ‘Club’ rather than ‘Championship’ - primary use of the golf course to be

club golf and not tournament/championship
• Seamlessness integrates with other activities and connects to the

clubhouse
• Flexible course set up options.//
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WORDS OF 
WISDOM
WINNING AND GROWING WINNERS 
AND TALENT IS PART OF WHAT MAKES 
US A THE CLUB WE ARE TODAY.

WENDY WILLIAMS  BRONZE 1 
18 H W JUBILEE STROKE PLAY 
I love being a part of the club community which 
supports fun and competition. Pre-match I 
enjoy a good natter and a little putt. It’s a buzz 
to connect competitively with my peers and 
I’ll focus when challenged. It’s an honour to 
compete in RGC events and the ultimate privilege 
is to have my name added to a board. When I hit 
a poor shot, I’ll revert to basics and check back 
on notes made over years after coaching. Top of 
my play wish list is my son, Sam, who currently 
lives in NY.” 

MARK CARROL 
MEN’S STROKE PLAY JUNIOR 
It’s always good to have some competitive 
options like the club champs. I enjoy the 
chance to win some dollars off the other 
guys on club days too! My game is better if I 
get some home stretches in, hit some range 
balls and follow up with some practice 
putts. I find my range finder an absolute 
must, every bit as valuable as my clubs 
(except maybe my putter). I hate playing 
a poor game although I try to minimise 
the damage by focusing on the future and 
enjoying a couple of wines. I’d love to play 
with Tiger Woods, Jack Nicklaus and Ben 
Hogan – to see who would have been  
the best!”

HANNAH MURCHISON  SILVER
18 H W MATCH PLAY 
I enjoy pennants and having an opportunity 
to compete and even better if I win! When 
I face challenges in my game, I remind 
myself to focus on the future. From a 
short sharp warm-up through to the end 
of the course it’s important to remain 
positive. My favoured club is the driver, my 
most consistent club.  If I had an infinite, 
unrestricted choice I’d love to play a game 
with Niall Horan, of One Direction fame, who 
advocates for women’s golf; one with Lando 
Norris, my favourite F1 diver; and Lydia Ko - 
because she’s Lydia Ko.”

ERIK JORGENSON 
MEN’S MATCH PLAY JUNIOR 
I love RGC club events and enjoy winning 
competitions. My golf shoes are indispensable 
as I run to the clubhouse just in time to tee off.  
I appreciate that they supply protection from 
course prickles too. If you spot me swinging 
random YouTube shots accompanied with 
swearing, I’ve probably fallen into a slump! 
I’d enjoy a chance to play a game with Kyle 
Berkshire who does some pretty amazing things 
with a golf ball. Alternatively, I’d take a chance on 
Donald Trump to master the art of the con.” 

MATT CORMACK
MEN’S STROKE PLAY OPEN 
I work pretty hard on my game and enjoy 
the intensity of competitive golf. I have 
a satisfying sense of achievement post 
a good outcome. Pre-game, I commit to 
serious routine of putting, stretching, 
hitting, chipping and being at the tee with 
time to spare. Facing a slump is a mental 
challenge I overcome by adopting a process 
of improvement. I love taking part in 
pennants for RGC and representative golf 
for Auckland. My dream foursome would be 
Tiger Woods, Riggs from Barstool Sports 
and Soly from No Laying Up.” 
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“WINNING AS AN 
INDIVIDUAL IS GREAT BUT 
THERE IS NOTHING LIKE 
THE BUZZ YOU GET FROM 
COMPETING AND WINNING 
AS A PART OF A TEAM.” 

MATT CORMACK

“CLUB CHAMPS ARE 
ALWAYS A CHALLENGE. 
PRESIDENT’S FOURSOMES 
MEAN YOU HAVE TO TRUST 
YOUR PARTNER AS WELL 
AS YOUR OWN GAME.”

MARK CARROLL

 “I LOVE THE CAMARADERIE 
OF FELLOW COMPETITORS, 
THE CHALLENGE TO 
PERFORM WELL AND 
SEEING THE RESULTS.”

WENDY WILLIAMS 

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

ANNA MASEFIELD 
9 H WOMEN’S STROKE PLAY 
Competitions give me the chance to 
improve my game and I enjoy taking part 
in the Eclectic. I wish my father was still 
around as I’d love a game with him. He 
was an amazing golfer and teacher of the 
game. When I don’t perform my best, I get 
frustrated and will swear. I feel my game 
is in a slump now but will persevere until it 
comes right again. My favourite club in the 
bag is my driver because it goes the longest 
distance and sets the tone of my game.” 

EVA HUONG  SILVER
18 H W JUBILEE STROKE PLAY 
Competitive golf provides me with the 
opportunity to compete at something I love. 
Pennants are a great opportunity for me to 
push to win. I stretch well before I play to 
avoid injury and try to warm up at the range. 
Thankfully I have the memory of a goldfish, 
so I don’t dwell on poor shots. I love to hit a 
crisp shot, with my favourite 52 degree BB 
wedge, and the ball lands in or next to the 
hole. I’d love to play with Lydia Ko – she has 
a great attitude and is so well-poised.” 

JAMES MARSHALL 

MEN’S MATCH PLAY GRADE C
I feel privileged to be able to play on our 
beautiful course. It was so special to see 
the endangered Kaka on the course too. As 
I have got older I appreciate that my time 
is fleeting and so I embrace my mostly 
constant poor performance and fully savour 
great shots and trophy wins, in the moment. 
I really enjoy golf for the opportunity to 
play a competitive sport outdoors, in nature 
and particularly like to participate in any 
‘Hindsy’ scramble, Greenkeepers revenge 
and FSTC December!” 

ROBBY TURNBALL  MEN’S OPEN 
MATCH PLAY CLUB CHAMPS
I enjoy playing golf with friends, meeting 
new people and playing in junior 
interprovincial for Auckland and pennants 
for Remuera. Obviously, I like to win! I try 
to get to the club 80 minutes prior to play 
to mess about a bit on the greens before 
heading to the range and finishing with 
some chipping and putting prior to tee off. I 
reckon you’ve got to have good gloves and 
nothing beats a brand new fresh perma soft 
glove. When stuff goes wrong on the course 
I try to think laterally about something non-
related, like a song.” 
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REMUERA GOLF CLUB PRIZE WINNERS 2022
MENS GOLF  PRIZE WINNERS

MENS GOLF – RGC COMPETITIONS  

Match Play Open Robby Turnbull
Match Play Intermediate Kailesh Patel
Match Play Junior Erik Jorgensen
Match Play C Grade James Marshall
Match Play D Grade Christie Xavier
Stroke Play Open Matthew Cormack
Stroke Play Intermediate Kailesh Patel
Stroke Play Junior Mark Carroll
Stroke Play C Grade John Isaac
Stroke Play D Grade Christie Xavier
Captains Prize Ivan Letica
General Managers Prize Not played
Veterans Cup Richard Garland 
Fraternity Bowl Not played 
Jack Notman Trophy Not played 
Waiatarua Trophy Thai Leng & Dennis Swan
Mid-Week Captains Erik Jorgensen
Mid-Week Presidents Colin Mcgowan & Dennis Swan
Summer Cup James Marshall
Winter Cup Not played
Remuera Plate Ken Taylor, Stephen Bryers, John Hill & Warwick Lewis
Anzac Trophy Jits Doolabh, Darren Soo, Thai Leng & Neil Copeland
Presidents Foursomes Erik & Karl Jorgensen
Booth Cup Brad Winger
Davie McGuire Trophy Bob Jones & Richard Fairey
Scottish Cup Krish Krishna

WOMENS GOLF 18 HOLE PRIZE WINNERS
CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS – JUBILEE STROKE PLAY

CHAMPION SECOND THIRD NET

Silver Eva Huang Helen Peters Giselle Pascual Gillian Ge
Bronze 1 Wendy Williams Nicola Judd Joan Reeves Kath Howe
Bronze 2 - - - -
Bronze 3 Jill Bartlett 

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS – MATCH PLAY

WINNER RUNNER UP

Silver Hannah Murchison Eva Huang
Bronze 1 Joyce Tuivakano Annie Tam
Bronze 2 Rosa Leung Margaret Hancox

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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WOMENS GOLF 18 HOLE PRIZE WINNERS continued 
TROPHY COMPETITIONS AND OTHER COMPETITIONS awarded at end of year prize giving

STROKE PLAY WINNER SECOND THIRD
Foursomes Championship Mary Pope & Jill Bartlett - -
Top Qualifiers Mary Pope & Jill Bartlett - -
Top Cat Week/day Linley Downey & Pru Robertson Mitsuko Wada & Judy Kwok Mihwa Lee & Sunny Park
Middlemore Cup Catherine Wharfe - -
Gross Cup Megan King - -
Coronation Cup Esther Cowper Mihwa Lee Villia Cheng
Nancy McCormick Rosemary Hurdley & Joan Reeves Anna May Brown & Ginny Gardiner -
MATCH PLAY WINNER RUNNER UP
Foursomes Championship Mary Pope & Jill Bartlett Cilla Tsui & Yun In Park -
Masters Trophy Shizue Beniya - -
Business Womens Pennant Trophy Nicky Durkin - -

WEEKEND WOMEN TROPHY COMPETITIONS awarded at end of year prize giving

STROKE PLAY WINNER SECOND THIRD
Top Cat Vicki Salmon & Ann Bone Wendy Potter & Megan King -
Bogey Cup Michelle Boag Ann Bone -
Presidents Cup Louise Campbell Caroline Timms -
Saturday Putting Comp Lyn Kempthorne & Maureen Kirkland Smith - -
Weekend Foursomes Cup Lyn Kempthorne & Ann Bone Giselle Pascual & Justine Murchison -
Autumn Handicap Janice McKinley & Mihwa Lee Rosa Leung & Joan Reeves -
Winter Cup Debbie Graham Lyn Kempthorne -

WOMENS GOLF 9 HOLE PRIZE WINNERS
TROPHY COMPETITIONS AND OTHER COMPETITIONS awarded at end of year prize giving

STROKE PLAY FIRST SECOND THIRD NET
Sue Bunt Leanne Bode Christine Duffy Clare Gallie
Putting best 2 of 3 Anne O’Connell
Winter Stableford Anna Masefield Kate Morgan – Rees Anne O’Connell
Club Championship - Div 1 Anna Masefield Kate Morgan – Rees Sarah Hills Kate Morgan – Rees
Top Cat Tessa Larsen &  

Sarah Hills
Amanda Boberg &  
Justine Jorgensen

Paula Hollies &  
Bev Aynsley

STROKE PLAY WINNER RUNNER-UP
Division 1 Bev Aynsley Chris Carroll

WINNERS OF LGU ROUNDS

ROUND Silver Bronze 1 Bronze 2 Bronze 3
1 Claire Stewart Ann Bone Rosemary Hurdley Justine Murchison
2 Yun In Park Helen Brewster Judy Purchase Alette Mead
3 Yun In Park Anne Lash Tina Chai Tara Kim
4 Joyce Tuivakano Bev Fuller Sandra Condon Wendy Potter
5 Karen Tapper Maureen Kirkland Smith Judy Skyrme Jill Bartlett
6 Gillian Ge Wendy Williams Diane Brown Jill Bartlett
7 Louise Campbell Juliet Johnson Judy Skyrme Shirley Ip
Gold Button Helen Brewster
Consolation Net Corinne Taylor

Special mention to the National District Teams – Judy Purchase, Helen Brewster, Mihwa Lee and Yun In Park who won the finals at Titirangi.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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“IF THE PAST TWO 
YEARS HAVE TAUGHT 
US ANYTHING, IT 
IS WE DON’T KNOW 
WHAT THE FUTURE 
HOLDS BUT AS WE 
FACE YEAR THREE OF 
COVID-19 WE HAVE 
AN OPPORTUNITY TO 
RESET THE AGENDA.”

While impacts have seemed less urgent than the initial shock to our lives and club operations, the myriad 
of disruption has been no less complex. From staff shortages, rising inflation, logistics and supply chain 
disruption, to operating restrictions, the club has needed to continually reinvent how we operate.

This time last year we were just emerging from the long Auckland lockdown and entering the COVID-19 
Protection Framework known as the traffic light system. This system had many operational impacts. 

Key impacts included:

• Our events business was significantly impacted with $58k worth of events cancelled and event
enquiries stalled

• The implementation of a vaccine policy and mandatory vaccine passes
• Required mask wearing
• The Winstones team delivered service under constrained circumstances
• The disruption of our supply chains: impacting our retail operation and the machinery and

consumables used to maintain the course
• The significant increase in inflation which affected our operating costs
• Lack of supply in the labour market, leaving us with a staff shortage, particularly in the hospitality space.

While we acknowledge the challenges, we also need to recognise the opportunity the sport of golf 
and this club experienced as people sought out a safe, social and local activity. Golf fulfilled this need 
perfectly. If it seemed like tee times were harder to come by this year, it wasn’t your imagination, 
members have been playing more golf than any time we can remember. We’d love to see this level 
of engagement continue but appreciate that members - finally able to travel freely - are taking the 
opportunity to enjoy golf trips, family reunions and holidays elsewhere, resulting in more relaxed tee 
sheets.

The new driving range met our members growing demand for practice and social facilities.  In fact, for six 
weeks the range (new and old) operated as a member only facility. Our members warmly embraced this, 
spending over 6,000 hours at the range in this period. 

If the past two years have taught us anything, it is we don’t know what the future holds but as we face 
year three of COVID-19 we have an opportunity to reset the agenda, complete the course master plan 
and shape our club facilities and offering to create greater value for members. 

UNITE AGAINST COVID-19
WHEN LOCKDOWNS BEGAN IN EARLY 2020, FEW OF US IMAGINED THE LONG 
ROAD AHEAD. THIS YEAR WE’VE HAD A NEW SET OF COVID-19 CHALLENGES.
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SUSTAINABILITY
SUSTAINABILITY IS AN EVER-GROWING NECESSITY IN TODAY’S WORLD AND 
REMUERA GOLF CLUB HAS A ROBUST SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY.

From the preservation of wildlife to promoting a low-carbon future, our club is making significant 
changes to contribute to a worldwide golfing movement to put the environment first. 

Golf’s use of chemicals, water, and other resources to maintain pristine golfing conditions has often 
been criticized for threatening the quality of our environment. While these issues are a concern, golf 
courses have a unique opportunity to protect and enhance our environment. By their very nature 
they provide significant natural areas that benefit people and wildlife in increasingly urbanized 
communities. We recognize the key role golf can play, as a growing international sport, tightly 
intertwined with landscapes and communities.

Spencer, our Head Greenkeeper, appreciates the respectful balance needed between the game 
of golf and the natural environment. As a green space, in the middle of a city, our club provides 
a natural habitat and ecosystem, improving the overall quality and treading lightly on natural 
resources. As well as fitting into the surrounding communities, RGC provides employment, 
recreation, and education.

WATER
Water is a critical commodity which we must conserve and use responsibly. We 
are demonstrating leadership in sustainable water management by improving our 
waterways, making our water healthier and a viable habitat for fish and bird life. 
More action will be taken to interpret this across the entire site.

ENERGY
The global population and its demand for energy increases every day. How we meet 
that demand is the critical issue. RGC is responding across a wide range of areas from 
low resource turfgrass to energy for the clubhouse and machinery. We are reviewing 
solar energy as an option with a pilot project scheme introduced for our members too. 
We also are analysing appliances in terms of their energy efficiency and looking to 
loan-share machines and bring on electric vehicles alongside the use of bio diesel fuel.

CARBON CREDIT
The products and services that we use are carefully considered to ensure a fair 
deal for local businesses and for our planet. We are mindful of our chain of supply 
when purchasing as it’s often only a small mind-shift that can make a significant 
difference. We can work with other businesses who are looking to trade carbon 
credits to achieve an overall reduction of emissions.

POLLUTION CONTROL
We all know what the impacts are of pollution are on our immediate environment 
and New Zealand has some of the strictest laws in the world aimed at preventing 
pollution. To complement the wonderful work done in Waiatarua Reserve the club 
is engaged in pollution control in water ways and soil along with pest control and 
habitat restoration. We advocate minimising the amount of waste that goes to landfill 
and provide recycling options and have further strategies to mitigate waste from all 
areas of the club.

GEO CERTIFICATION
In 2014 our strategy began to enhance the landscape and ecosystem, creating and 
sustaining beautiful and biologically rich open spaces. We set a goal to become carbon 
neutral and have not only achieved this but are climate positive by +-62 tons per year.

What’s more, our team shares their experience to support other NZ golf clubs in 
working towards the internationally recognized GEO certification. RGC has been 
certified continuously since 2016.
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Not all plans go the way we intended having had 
one of the wettest winters on record, resulting in a 
significant number of days the course was closed.

As a consequence, we have adjusted our priorities 
and sequencing of works to have the greatest 
impact by improving the playability and health and 
safety along with greens re-surfacing as planned.

DECEMBER - MARCH 
GREENS RE-SURFACING (creeping bent) 
• 16,17,18 – 12 Dec – 23 Jan 2023 
• 1,2,3 – March 2023 coring. 

MARCH - APRIL
9TH HOLE 
• Complete drainage, some laterals, sand slit / 

top drain 
• Re-surface fairway (creeping bent). 
9TH TEES 
• Install metal path. 

1ST HOLE - AS PER MASTERPLAN 
• Re-align fairway as per masterplan for H&S 

re-surface fairway (creeping bent) 
• Extend drainage and irrigation 
• New 5th tees to accommodate realigned 1st 
• Install metal path. 

DRAINAGE 
• 10th hole (in-house) (coring week) complete 

drainage, minor laterals, sand slit

• 16th hole (in-house) laterals (Dec / Jan while 
16th green out of use).

Mitigation of the health and safety issues with the 
3rd hole, have been affected by the wet winter but 
are due to start the permanent 10m high net, as 
soon as the ground conditions allow, and this will 
take about 2-3 weeks to complete.

The revisit of the masterplan has progressed and 
while we were hoping to have finalised this by mid 
2022, we are very close to being able to circulate 
the update to members.

With no major works undertaken in 2021/2022, 

the following is an update on course works.
• Improving playability – ongoing
• Conversion of 5th hole fairway to creeping 

bent and fescue rough
• Replacement of the irrigation main line – work 

in progress, now RGC have purchased its own 
trenching machine

• Stabilisation and armoring of 15th pond 
edges – deferred due to lack of resources and 
masterplan review

• Tree removal & native tree planting - ongoing 
• Expansion of the onsite turf farm - completed
• Netting on the 3rd hole - underway
• Extension of the driving range netting & bay 

dividers – the materials for the bay dividers 
is finally starting to arrive and hopefully the 
installation to all the open range bays will be 
completed by Christmas   

• Installation of artificial turf in front of DR’s 
to improve ball recovery, eliminate turf 
damage and improve the player experience – 
completed

• Pump house extension – complete.

I’d like to thank all the CTG members for their 
valuable contributions and robust debate and in 
particular a massive shout out to Spencer and his 
team for their continued quest to make the course 
as good as it can be, particularly through the wet 
winter and covid impacts.

See you on the course.

Andrew Millard
Chair Course Technical Group  
and Board Member

COURSE AND ENVIRONMENT
FOLLOWING ON FROM LAST YEAR’S RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD THAT 
NO MAJOR WORK BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE NEXT 18-24 MONTHS TO ALLOW 
MEMBERS TO ENJOY THE COURSE WITH MINIMAL DISRUPTION. 

OVER 250 RABBITS, 
45 POSSUMS AND 
MANY OTHER PESTS 
CONTROLLED 

16% DECREASE IN 
CO2 EMISSIONS 
(2018 TO 2019)

CARBON POSITIVE 66 
TONS CO2 SEQUESTED 
IN 2019.
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Ensure the course and surrounding areas are planned and maintained to a high standard in line with the expectations of members and visitors, within defined budgets. 

Core Areas 2022 – 2024 Actions / Outcomes How are we progressing

Course 
Improvements 

Minimise significant course disruption for 12-18 months to maximise playability 
for members

Review and refresh the course masterplan including considering recent and 
long-term golfing trends, H&S, etc

Implement masterplan changes plan to continue to improve playability over 
next 2 years including drainage, paths, irrigation, lakes, bunkers

Ensure on-course H&S pinchpoints are adequately addressed or mitigated 
including road holes and hole 3, trees etc 

Prepare (& maintain) a detailed course policy which is available on the website, 
used to drive annual plans, greenkeepers priorities and overall resource 
requirements.

Greens Finalise the greens management policy documents

Implement greens resurfacing programme (turf nursery procurement)

Implement IPM plan for greens.

Fairways Finalise plan for fairway grasses species selection and implementation.

Trees & Gardens Continue proactive tree management plan implementation.

Velocity Driving 
Range 

Complete landscaping around the driving range and clubhouse

Plan to improve drainage /surfaces on the range, introduce additional  
artificial turf.

Water Storage / 
Ponds

Continue to improve water quality and storage

Install erosion protection for two lakes, and possible relining in future.

Environment Continue and enhance the club's "green mission" including maintaining GEO 
certification and continuous improvement.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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MEMBERSHIP AND MARKETING 
Maximise the potential the club can offer to members and non-members in terms of golf, socialising and wellbeing.

Endorse our position as a friendly, progressive club. 

Core Areas 2022 – 2024 Actions / Outcomes How are we progressing

Membership Continue to develop and refine member categories, rights and value 
propositions including:

• determine optimal size of membership and categories, and activity area
• increase membership levels in under represented categories
• provide mentoring and/or onboarding support for new members
• implement a retention strategy for members
• conduct membership satisfaction surveys covering both on & off 

course, engagement, and culture.

Implement the member recognition policy

Commence health and wellness initiatives.

Communications Continue to enhance and implement our member communications 
strategy including use of the website and social media

Launch e-calendar for club fixtures and events

Introduced members magazine.

Branding & Marketing Implement driving range branding

Launch new website and booking platform for range

Implement marketing activations for range post COVID lockdown.
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We have also seen great member usage of the 
driving range with an impressive 24% of total 
range time being members. Members utilise 
and enjoy club facilities beyond golf hosting 
functions at Velocity and in the Tui lounge. 
Birthdays and work social events are popular 
with members and we are pleased to be able to 
provide a comforting environment for members 
say farewell to loved ones. 

During 2021 the board, with input from club 
committees, refined our club vision and core 
pillars. Central to this is the ‘Club as our 
Third Place - providing a golfing and social 
environment that is safe, inclusive, welcoming 
and relaxed with a range of activities and 
opportunities for members and visitors.’

Within this vision, the role of the membership 
committee is to ensure the policy for 
membership aligns with the club’s vision and 
strategic direction. And in so doing, provide 
member and customer service and satisfaction, 
and contribute to the overall sustainability of 
the club.

There has been much thought and robust 
discussion about the intake of new members 
this season. With high levels of member 
engagement, we have needed to carefully 
balance existing members needs and the 
opportunity to welcome new members to the 

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE REPORT
IT’S GREAT TO REPORT THAT MEMBERS HAVE BEEN HIGHLY ENGAGED WITH THE CLUB THIS YEAR, PLAYING MORE ROUNDS 
THAN EVER BEFORE.  OF ALL THE ROUNDS PLAYED THIS YEAR, OUR MEMBERS MADE UP 96%.

club. Decisions haven’t been made lightly and I 
am pleased to report that we have been able to 
offer all family members of existing members 
on the waiting list (excluding full playing men) 
membership at the club. We have also taken in 
a group of intermediate women and 18-hole 
women. This aligns strongly with the club’s 
strategic priorities of being the third place, 
a place members can share with their family 
members alongside our desire to continue to 
have a healthy women’s golf programme. 

A key project was to develop a reward and 
recognition framework to enable us to celebrate 
the contributions of members and staff. The 
first awards will be presented in March 2023. 
All members will be invited to nominate fellow 
members in the following categories.

• Player of the year – Men’s, Women’s,
Intermediate, Junior

• Members of the year - most engaged and 
active volunteers for benefit of the club and
community

• Patron’s award - best wellbeing support 
through the year for the club or for fellow
members

• Team members of the year – two employees 
who have best contributed to RGC values and
to serving members.

Communication is vital to a healthy member-
based club. The committee reviewed and 
approved a new communications plan which 
included opportunities for different styles 
of communication and a greater opportunity 
for member feedback. A detailed member 
satisfaction survey was conducted with a plan 
for this to be an annual survey which will give 
us current information about the club and over 
time provide us with longitudinal data to see 
how we are progressing. Other measures of 
satisfaction are soon to be rolled out including 
a net promoter score survey which would be a 
live sample of member experiences. The wrap 
has been revamped, magazine introduced, 
video updates produced and shortly a member 
information space will go live in the café to share 
details of the course works for 2023 along with 
the course master plan.

Thank you to the committee for their hard 
work and robust discussions this year. And 
thank you to the club management team 
for the dedication to creating a vibrant club 
environment for all to enjoy.

Pauline Harrision
Chair of the Membership Committee

MEMBERSHIP NUMBERS 
2022 2021 2020 2019

PLAYING Female Male Total Female Male Total Total Total

Full, 18 Hole 109 447 556 112 453 565 477 440

Weekday 67 42 109 66 49 115 165 206

9 Hole 181 43 224 176 48 224 199 179

Flexi 45 152 197 59 161 220 242 248

Intermediate (20 - 39yrs) 8 122 130 6 112 118 82 57

Junior (up to 19yrs) 32 110 142 32 107 139 135 121

Life, Honorary & Veteran 11 15 26 14 15 29 31 35

Corporate 2 59 61 3 58 61 56 56

Total Playing 455 990 1445 468 1003 1471 1387 1342

I90 Discount (incl above) 86 170 256 84 169 253 228 220

Associate/Non playing 41 93 134 39 76 115 110 123

Total Associate 496 1083 1579 507 1079 1586 1497 1465

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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The scope of club services work covers service and supply of all off course activities, including the Velocity 
driving range, retail (including online shop), fittings, coaching and hospitality (Winstones, Velocity and 
events).

The primary challenge for the 2022 year has been with recruitment for various club services roles, 
including appropriately resourcing our new service initiatives.

Pleasingly, despite this the club services teams have had a record year in terms of service to members and 
visitors, and financial contribution to the club.

A sample of interesting measures of engagement and satisfaction in 2022 are: 
• Members have used over 10,000 sessions in our Velocity facility
• Member sessions make up 24% of all usage at Velocity
• 650 members use Winstones on a regular basis - at least once per month
• Over 66,000 pints and bottles of beer were served in the year
• Over 16,000 muffins, scones, quiche, and sausage rolls were served in the year
• 27,000 eggs were consumed in the year
• We average over 400,000 balls hit at Velocity each month
• We are pleased to report that member 2022 rebates and discounts given in the last year total 

$161,000 (in Winstones, Velocity and retail).

Specific activities progressed in 2022 that will be advanced in 2023, subject to managing the supply 
constraints we are still experiencing, will include: 

• Dedicated member and coaching practice area 
• Further development of the Velocity driving range facility including netting and a dedicated 

member area
• Completing the important upgrade of the kitchen (to support being open 100 hours per week to 

serve members)
• Advancing improved layout and presentation of Winstones (indoor and outdoor) with a view to 

more significant enhancements in 2024/25
• Continuing the development of the retail processes (with thanks to member Peter McCormack for 

his ongoing specialised support)
• Supporting innovation in competitions and festivals, including more women's engagement at RGC.

We would like to thank all the club services leaders and their teams for their ability, with grace and spirit, to 
deliver high service levels.

Geoff Burns
Chair of Club Services Group

CLUB SERVICES ADVISORY GROUP 
2022 REPORT
THIS IS A GROUP ESTABLISHED IN EARLY 2021 AS A SUPPORT BODY TO THE GM 
AND THE DIRECTOR OF CLUB SERVICES.

“THE PRIMARY 
CHALLENGE FOR 
THE 2022 YEAR 
HAS BEEN WITH 
RECRUITMENT 
FOR VARIOUS 
CLUB SERVICES 
ROLES, INCLUDING 
APPROPRIATELY 
RESOURCING OUR 
NEW SERVICE 
INITIATIVES.”
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CLUB SERVICES 
Promote the enjoyment of golf through a varied golf event program which meets the needs and expectations of all categories of members and visitors.

Continue to develop and improve the clubs off-course activities that enhance social and well-being experiences.

Core Areas 2022 -2024 Actions / Outcomes How are we progressing

ALL Complete customer service training plan and implementation

Commence calendar of events (monthly member engagement) to be launched

Ensure diversity is considered on all initiatives.

On-Course  Golf Review and enhance the golf-playing experience including:
• ensure we have the right balance between social and competitive play
• the weekly golf schedule and playing times are fair
• consider a potential merger of match and ladies committees
• encourage junior golf and development
• consider increased category interaction
• consider widening of competitions & scrambles and club days
• ensure resulting playing program meets members needs.

Launch Festival of Golf

Off-Course Golf Refine and continuously improve the Velocity range business model  
including proving the original business case.

Driving Range Continue to enhance the player experience

Develop pathway plans for learners including juniors.

Coaching Grow coaching and player development programmes

Promote online coaching platform

Scope coaching / player development facility.

Retail Retail – CRM / professional sales and service delivery/ladies golf products

Fitting Studio / hit our targets.

Winstones Progress the continuing development of the food and beverage services with 
emphasis on quality, consistency, presentation and value

Refurbish the kitchen areas, related storage facilities, Winstones and 
courtyard.

Health & 
Wellness

Plan and implement near term H&W experiences

Develop a long term concept plan for complementary H&W services at the 
club, including facilities.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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Such as allowing special exemptions during our 
match play competitions for those impacted by 
household isolation requirements. These household 
isolation requirements played havoc, particularly 
in the early part of the year. In 2022, Remuera 
fielded six men’s pennant teams and seven women’s 
pennant teams, which is the most teams we have 
ever put forward. 

There were several members coming out of 
representative retirement to help the club field a full 
team for matches when impacted by the isolation 
requirements. It highlights the depth of players we 
have at our club, especially with the results that we 
see. All six of the men’s pennant teams made it to 
their respective semi-finals with the Bissett and 
Championship 2 (B) teams making to the final and 
falling agonisingly short at the end. 

Not to be outdone by the men, four of the seven 
women’s teams came second in their divisions (Betty 
Faesen (B), A grade – section 1, midweek – section B 
and weekend – section A). A special thank you to all 
those involved in pennants from managers, captains, 
players and volunteers across both the men’s and 
women’s teams!

It is great to see the continued success with 
our club Pennant teams, and how many of our 
players represented Auckland this year. Whether 
it be in the seniors, masters, or junior age groups. 
Congratulations to the following members in earning 
their spot to represent Auckland this year:
Rebekah Blackwell-Chin, Max Clarke, Matt Cormack, 
Aileen Du, James Eng, Daniel Freeman, Jackie Jang, 
Chloe Lam, Jax Loh, Finlay McKechnie, Rakesh Patel, 
Ishaan Shah, Nathan Smith, Scott Thrupp, Robby 
Turnball, Eamon Wairepo, Ryan Xie.

Shout out to Robby Turnball who was named player 
of the tournament at the Junior Interprovincial 
Tournament and represented New Zealand at the 
Jack Newton Age Groups in Australia where he 
finished second!

Our club competitions have been extremely well 
supported throughout the year and we would like 
to congratulate all the winners of competitions and 
trophies. The golf & match committee will continue 
to focus on delivering a varied golf event program 
which meets the needs and expectations of all our 
members. The festival of golf planned for December 

2022 is the first in delivering an event where all 
members can enjoy playing together at the club, both 
competitively and socially. 

A big thank you to the on-course and greenkeeping 
team, who have managed constant challenges 
throughout the year. My thanks to my fellow 
committee members for their time, support, and 
commitment during the year.

As we look towards the 2023 season, we welcome 
the opportunity to continue in providing members 
with an enhanced playing calendar and competition 
framework and ongoing support with any changes to 
the rules of golf. 

Thanks again and we look forward to serving all 
members in 2023.

James Kim
Men’s Golf Captain
Chairman Golf & Match 

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

GOLF AND MATCH REPORT
THE 2022 SEASON COULD BE DESCRIBED AS ONE OF TRYING TO GET THINGS 
‘BACK TO NORMAL’. WITH COVID-19 RESTRICTIONS LIFTING IN SEPTEMBER 
2022, IT MEANT WE HAD TO BE ADAPTIVE FOR OUR MEMBERS TO CONTINUE 
ENJOYING THEIR GOLF AND THEIR COMPETITIONS. 

“IT IS GREAT TO SEE THE 
CONTINUED SUCCESS 
WITH OUR CLUB 
PENNANT TEAMS, AND 
HOW MANY OF OUR 
PLAYERS REPRESENTED 
AUCKLAND THIS YEAR.”  

“OUR CLUB 
COMPETITIONS HAVE 
BEEN EXTREMELY 
WELL SUPPORTED 
THROUGHOUT 
THE YEAR AND WE 
WOULD LIKE TO 
CONGRATULATE ALL 
THE WINNERS OF 
COMPETITIONS AND 
TROPHIES.”
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Congratulations go to our 2022 match play 
champion, Hannah Murchison, and stroke 
play champion, Eva Huang. Age proved to be 
no barrier to the winners of our Foursomes 
Championship. Mary Pope and Jill Bartlett 
(who might be described as vets at other clubs) 
match-playing their way through to victory! How 
wonderful golf is for our long-term fitness and 
obviously, experience counts too!

We have two new 9 hole club champions. Well 
done to Bev Aynsley for becoming the match 
play champion and to Anna Masefield the stroke 
play champion.

As we plan the 2023 calendar we try to 
accommodate as many favourite options as 
possible. 

18-hole active competition players tend to like a 
mixture of their traditional trophy competitions 
plus fun days e.g. teams days, ambrose, etc 
and we will have six pennants teams playing 
in the Auckland 2023 competitions. The happy 
camaraderie means there is always support 
around if caddies are required. 

Members are consciously encouraged to join our 
Saturday or mid-week competition days where 
tee slots are mainly mixed enabling members to 
get to know each other and, afterwards, enjoy 
the wide range of subjects discussed over lunch 
as we sit in our playing groups.

9-hole members are a mixture of those who 
enjoy the competitive side of fold and play in the 
club competitions (Top Cat, Sue Bunt, etc) and 
others enjoy the social side, playing casually 
with a mixture of friends. RGC won their zone 
competition but unfortunately the Auckland 
competition was cancelled.

There has been a very good joint initiative 
between NZ Golf and RGC to encourage young 
girls to try golf, our driving range being the 
perfect place for their introduction.

The Weekly Wrap is a ‘must read’ for our group to 
keep informed about our events and happenings 
around the club. The Wrap has undergone a 
wonderful facelift by Vanessa Baxter and we 
thank her very much as we do to Karee Oates for 
her support of our ladies membership.

How we enjoy those greetings, smiles, beautiful 
course and good service and from the RGC team 
who have had to step up and manage through 
staff shortages and sickness. We do appreciate 
how difficult it has been for you. Stephanie Grant 
and John Sims do a huge amount behind the 
scenes for us. A very big thank you to you all 
from the RGC ladies.

I would particularly like to thank our ladies 
committee for your work and willingness. There 
is a lot to be gained by giving a little and we have 
all benefited from your hard work.

Wendy Williams
Women’s Golf Captain

WOMEN’S GOLF REPORT
RGC LADIES HAVE ENJOYED REGAINING SOME NORMALITY AFTER  
THE COVID-19 RESTRICTIONS. AT LAST WE HAVE BEEN ABLE TO PLAY OUR 
TROPHY COMPETITIONS. 

“THERE HAS BEEN 
A VERY GOOD JOINT 
INITIATIVE BETWEEN 
NZ GOLF AND RGC TO 
ENCOURAGE YOUNG 
GIRLS TO TRY GOLF, 
OUR DRIVING RANGE 
BEING THE PERFECT 
PLACE FOR THEIR 
INTRODUCTION.”

“MEMBERS ARE 
CONSCIOUSLY 
ENCOURAGED TO JOIN 
OUR SATURDAY OR MID-
WEEK COMPETITION 
DAYS WHERE TEE SLOTS 
ARE MAINLY MIXED 
ENABLING MEMBERS 
TO GET TO KNOW EACH 
OTHER.”  
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We started the year in COVID-19 level 3 which 
continued until December and then we went 
into red and then orange under the Covid 
traffic light system until mid-September. The 
impact of being under some form of restriction 
for effectively the whole year was significant, 
particularly on food and beverage services. 
We had budgeted for an operating surplus of 
$958,000 with 8.5 weeks of COVID-19  L3 so 
to achieve $748,371 against the background 
of the restrictions we were operating under 
is quite satisfactory. This translated to a net 
deficit of $48,910 against the budgeted surplus 
of $128,000 and that for last year of $32,750.

Revenue for the year finished at $8,012,411 
ahead of last year of $7,239,919 and of that 
budgeted of $7,723,500. One of the real 
positives from the COVID-19 restrictions has 
been real growth in golf participation which 
saw our membership revenue exceed both 
budget and that for the prior year. 

In line with this retail revenue was also strong. 
Alas this trend wasn’t continued in food & 
beverage with the inability to operate at full 
capacity and the fall off in functions. Meanwhile 
the driving range performed strongly through 
all of this and is now exceeding projections. 
A strong component of this are functions and 
food & beverage on the range.

Expenditure, overall, reflected activity levels 
with the exception of staff costs, and was 
up on both budget and last year. Staff costs 
where higher than expected for two reasons 
both related to covid. One, recruitment was 
difficult and we relied on casual and agency 
staff. Two, operational requirements under the 
traffic light system were more labor intensive. 

The net operating surplus before depreciation 
of $748,371 which was down on what was 
budgeted by $209,629 meant it was prudent to 
cut back or defer capital expenditure with the 
major projects impacted being the renovation of 
the ponds, the kitchen and Winstones. However, 
this allowed us to continue to reduce bank debt 
and generate a net cash surplus.

2022 FINANCE REPORT
IF WE THOUGHT THE PREVIOUS COUPLE OF YEARS PRESENTED US WITH A FEW 
CHALLENGES 2022 IN MANY WAYS OUT DID THEM.  

At balance date member loans totalled 
$1,935,000 which was down by $7,500 against 
the prior year. External (bank) debt totalled 
$725,000 after we repaid $75,000 during the 
year. Interest in the member loan scheme 
remains strong so a very big thank you to 
all those members who have supported the 
scheme. In the next financial year we have 
$870,000 member loans maturing and/or 
rolling over so the continuation of member 
support is critical and other avenues will need 
to be explored as well.

Looking to the current year we are budgeting 
for a net operating surplus before depreciation 
of $874,940, provided there are no further 
COVID-19  interruptions. Delivery of this 
surplus will allow us to complete further 
drainage works on the 9th, 10th and 16th, form 
paths on the 9th and 10th and continue with 
the resurfacing of greens while completing the 
required upgrade to the kitchen in Winstones.

There is no end to the demand on the clubs 
financial resources to complete all the 
competing projects we have and we are also 
conscious of the potential for difficult financial 
times ahead so we need to be prudent as we 
work our way through the next couple of years.

Once again to Chris Davies and his team thank 
you for putting up with our demands and 
questions and ensuring the clubs finances are 
carefully and properly managed.

Then finally to Mike Gault, Vicki Salmon, Ian 
Braddock, Brett Winstanley, Jan Martin and 
Megan King for their scrutiny of all the issues 
we were presented with and the manner in 
which they did so. Thank you.

Maurice Kidd
Chairman Finance Committee

“DESPITE 
COVID RELATED 
DISRUPTIONS 
SIGNIFICANT 
PROGRESS WAS 
MADE DURING THE 
YEAR INCLUDING 
THE OPENING OF THE 
NEW DRIVING RANGE 
AND THE CLUB IS IN 
A STRONG POSITION 
GOING FORWARD.”
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Independent

AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF REMUERA GOLF CLUB (INCORPORATED)

OPINION
We have audited the financial statements of Remuera Golf Club 
Incorporated (‘the Club”), which comprise:

• the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2022 

•  the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense for the year then 
ended;

•  the statement of changes in net assets/equity for the year then ended;

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and 

•  the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements on pages 26 to 41 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Remuera 
Golf Club Incorporated as at September 30 2022, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Public Benefit Entity Standards Reduced  Disclosure Regime issued by the 
New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.  

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing 
(New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)).  Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Club in accordance with Professional and Ethical 
Standard 1 International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (including 
International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the New 
Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests 
in, the Club.  

OTHER INFORMATION
The executive committee members are responsible for the other 
information.  The other information comprises the annual report pages 
1 to 24 and 42 to 48 (but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of audit opinion or 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed on the 
other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard.  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The executive committee members are responsible, on behalf 
of Remuera Golf Club Incorporated, for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Public 
Benefit Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime, and for such 
internal control as those charged with governance determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the executive committee 
members are responsible, on behalf of the Club, for assessing the 
Club’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the executive committee members either intend to 
liquidate the Club or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 
but to do so.    

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  A 
further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements is located at the XRB’s website at:  
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/assurance-standards/auditors-responsibilities/audit-report-8/ 

WHO WE REPORT TO
This report is made solely to the members, as a body.  Our audit has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Remuera Golf Club Incorporated and 
the members as a body, for our work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.  

 

 RSM Hayes Audit 4 December 2022
 Auckland

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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Statement of comprehensive

REVENUE AND EXPENSE
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

Notes  2022  2021 
 $  $ 

Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Membership Revenue 6.1  2,675,072  2,608,811 
Partnership | Sponsorship  316,651  282,824 
Club Services 6.2  4,369,883  3,648,391 
Sundry 6.3  198,574  220,569 
Gain on Sale of Asset  5,515  (899)

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
Covid Government Subsidies  446,716  480,223 

Total Revenue  8,012,411  7,239,919 

Less Expenditure
Course & Env 6.6  1,312,744  1,262,055 
Club Services 6.5  4,163,537  3,574,716 
Facilities 6.7  658,168  669,033 
Administration 6.8  890,931  851,464 
Total Expenditure  7,025,380  6,357,268 

Operating Surplus before Depreciation and Net Finance Costs  987,031  882,651 

Depreciation 5.2  797,281  662,322 
Operating Surplus before Net Finance Costs  189,750  220,329 
Finance Costs  238,660  187,579 

Less Net Finance Costs 6.9  238,660  187,579 

Operating Surplus / (deficit) for the year  (48,910)  32,750 
Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense  -  -
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense  (48,910)  32,750 

The operating surplus / (deficit) for the year and total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense are attributable to the members of 
the club.

The Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the 
Independent Auditor’s Report.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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Statement of changes in

NET ASSETS/EQUITY
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
$ $

Accumulated Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
Accumulated Comprehensive Revenue and Expense at 1 October  3,745,231  3,712,481 

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) for the year  (48,910)  32,750 

Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense  -   - 

Accumulated Comprehensive Revenue and Expense at 30 September  3,696,321  3,745,231 

The Statement of Changes in Net Assets / Equity is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the Independent 
Auditor’s Report.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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Statement of

FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 September 2022

Notes 2022 2021
 $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7  438,481  351,024 
Accounts Receivable (from exchange transactions) 8  163,919  42,908 
Accounts Receivable (from non - exchange transactions) 8  28,118  -   
Prepayments  56,040  54,282 
Inventories 5.4  758,702  531,883 
Total Current Assets  1,445,260  980,097 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 5.1  7,951,975  8,394,370 
Total Non-Current Assets  7,951,975  8,394,370 

TOTAL ASSETS  9,397,235  9,374,467 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Subscriptions in Advance 5.9  1,799,818  1,581,377 
Trade Payables (under exchange transactions) 11  711,749  639,638 
Trade Payables (under non exchange transactions) 11  -    1,474 
Members' Match Funds 5.5  26,413  35,581 
Members' Cards  198,265  191,657 
Bank Loan 5.8  -  800,000 
Finance Lease 5.6  126,614    153,472 
Members' Loan Scheme 5.7  870,000  357,500 
Total Current Liabilities  3,732,859  3,760,699 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Members Loan Scheme 5.7  1,065,000  1,585,000 
Bank Loan 5.8  725,000  - 
Finance Lease 5.6  178,055  283,537 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  1,968,055  1,868,537 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  5,700,914  5,629,236 
NET ASSETS  3,696,321  3,745,231 
Represented by: Accumulated Comprehensive Revenue and Expense  3,696,321  3,745,231 

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and the Independent  
Auditor’s Report.

Ian Braddock 
Club Captain 
Date: 4th December 2022

Chris Davies 
General Manager 
Date: 4th December 2022

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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Statement of

CASH FLOWS

Ian Braddock 
Club Captain 
Date: 4th December 2022

For the year ended 30 September 2022

Notes 2022 2021
 $  $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Exchange Transactions
Cash was provided from:
Receipts from Members and Visitors  7,596,824  6,985,943 
Interest Received  2  653 

Receipts from non-exchange transactions
Wage Subsidy  446,716  338,305 

Cash was disbursed to:
Payments to Suppliers and Employees  (7,130,706)  (6,707,086)
Interest Paid  (181,455)  (134,506)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities  731,381  483,309 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  9,543  1,150 

Cash was applied to:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Course Development  (438,627)  (2,628,360)

Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities  (429,084)  (2,627,210)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Members’ Loan Scheme - Receipts  350,000  350,000 
Bank Loan Receipts  -  400,000 

Cash was applied to:
Members’ Loan Scheme - Repayments  (357,500)  (231,000)
Repayment of Finance Lease  (132,340)  (113,231)
Bank Loan Repayment  (75,000)  - 

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities  (214,840)  405,769 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash Held  87,457  (1,738,132)
Add Opening Cash brought forward  351,024  2,089,156 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at year end 7  438,481  351,024 

The Statement of Cashflows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and the Independent Auditor’s Report.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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1.  REPORTING ENTITY

“Remuera Golf Club Incorporated (“”The Club””) is a club incorporated under 
the Incorporated Societies Act 1908 and is registered as a charitable entity 
under the Charities Act 2005.  The financial statements of the Club have 
been prepared in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards – Reduced 
Disclosure Regime (“PBE Standards - RDR”).

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a)  Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities Act 2005 which is compliant with New Zealand Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (“NZ GAAP”). They comply with the Public Benefit 
Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime (“PBE Standards RDR”) as 
appropriate for Tier 2 not-for-profit public benefit entities, for which all 
reduced disclosure regime exemptions have been adopted. 

For the purposes of complying with NZ GAAP, the Club is a public benefit not-
for-profit entity and is eligible to apply PBE Standards RDR on the basis that it 
does not have public accountability and it is not defined as large. 

b)  Measurement basis
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

c)  Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand Dollars ($), which is 
the functional and presentation currency, rounded to the nearest dollar.

There has been no change in the functional currency of the club during the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Club’s financial statements requires management 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the Club’s 
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a)  Judgements
In the process of applying the Club’s accounting policies, management has 
made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification of non-financial assets as cash generating or non-cash 
generating assets for the purposes of assessing impairment indicators and 
impairment testing.

The majority of property, plant and equipment held by the Club is classified 
as cash generating assets. 

b)  Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the 
following indicators to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

• The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts 
employed by the Club

• The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed
• Availability of funding to replace the asset.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“OUR RANGE IS A WORLD 
CLASS ADDITION TO THE 
CLUB, THE BENEFITS WILL 
BE FELT FOR MANY YEARS 
THROUGH MANY FORMS, 
NOT LEAST GENERATING 
THE PIPELINE OF FUTURE 
MEMBERS AND PROVIDING 
AN ADDITIONAL SUSTAINABLE 
REVENUE SOURCE.”
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Changes in accounting estimates
There have been no changes in the accounting estimates for the current 
reporting period.

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a)  Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits or service potential will flow to the Club and the revenue can be 
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue 
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding 
taxes or duty.     

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before 
revenue is recognised.

i)  Revenue from exchange transactions
INTEREST REVENUE
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest rate. 
Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future 
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument 
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset or liability.  

ENTRANCE FEES
As at 1 October 2018 new members have an option to pay the entrance fees 
in one lump sum or in regular invoiced instalments over a period of up to 3 
years. Entrance fees are recognised as income when the member accepts the 
offer to join the club. Prior to 1 October  2018, new members had an option to 
pay the entrance fees in one lump sum or in regular invoiced instalments over 
a period of up to 10 years. Revenue was recognised when members were 
invoiced.

WINSTONE’S, CLUB SERVICES AND GREEN FEES 
Income generated from Winstone’s, Club Services and Green Fees are 
recognised upon receipt, as the risks and rewards of the goods are 
transferred at this time.     

SUBSCRIPTIONS
Members and corporate subscriptions are recognised as revenue on an equal 
instalment basis over the period to which they relate.  

Any monies received prior to 30 September each year for the following year 
are recognised as income received in advance .  

Any refund of annual subscriptions will only be made at the discretion of the 
Board only in special circumstances.   

MATCH FEES AND MEMBER VOLUNTEER ACTIVITY
Match fees arising from either part of the annual subscription charged 
to members or from voluntary activities are applied to meet the costs of 
the competitions for the season. Any surplus or deficit arising from these 
competitions is carried forward to future competition activity.  

ii)  Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are those where the Club receives an inflow 
of resources (i.e. cash and other tangible or intangible items) but provides 
no (or nominal) direct consideration in return. These funds are recognised 
when the conditions attached to the grant or subsidy has been complied 

with. Where there are unfulfilled conditions, the amount relating to the 
unfulfilled condition is recognised as a liability and released to revenue as the 
conditions are fulfilled.  

b)  Employee benefits

i)  Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit liabilities are recognised when the Club 
has a legal or constructive obligation to remunerate employees for 
services provided with 12 months of reporting date, and is measured on 
an undiscounted basis and expensed in the period in which employment 
services are provided.

c)  Finance costs
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in surplus or 
deficit using the effective interest method, otherwise borrowing costs are 
capitalised as part of a qualifying asset’s initial cost.

d) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Club 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

The Club derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest 
in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Club is 
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Club derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations 
are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

The Club also derecognises financial assets and financial liabilities when 
there has been significant changes to the terms and/or the amount of 
contractual payments to be received/paid.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in 
the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Club has a legal 
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Club classifies financial assets as loans and receivables.

The Club classifies financial liabilities  at amortised cost.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, plus for those 
financial instruments not subsequently measured at fair value through 
surplus or deficit, directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent measurement is dependent on the classification of the financial 
instrument, and is specifically detailed in the accounting policies below.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents and  trade 
receivables, excluding prepayments.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above.

Financial liabilities classified as amortised cost are non-derivative financial 
liabilities that are not classified as fair value through surplus or deficit 
financial liabilities.

e) Impairment of non-derivative financial assets
A financial asset not subsequently measured at fair value through surplus 
or deficit is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is 
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there 
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event(s) 
had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be 
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or 
delinquency by a counterparty, restructuring of an amount due to the Club 
on terms that the Club would not consider otherwise, indications that a 
counterparty or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment 
status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security. 

i) Financial assets classified as loans and receivables

The Club considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at 
amortised cost (loans and receivables) at both a specific asset and collective 
level.

All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. Those 
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any 
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. 

Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for 
impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Club uses historical trends of the 
probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss 
incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current 
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be 
greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised 
cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in surplus or deficit and 
reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables. Interest on 
the impaired asset continues to be recognised.

When an event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the 
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through surplus or deficit.

f) Property, plant and equipment

The cost of purchased property, plant and equipment is the value of the 
consideration given to acquire the assets and the value of other directly 
attributable costs which have been incurred in bringing the assets to the 
location and condition necessary for their intended service.

i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 
property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and 
the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Club. 
Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.

iii) Depreciation
For property, plant and equipment, depreciation is based on the cost of 
an asset less its residual value and for buildings is based on the revalued 
amount less its residual value.

Significant components of individual assets that have a useful life that 
is different from the remainder of those assets, those components are 
depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant 
and equipment.

The estimated useful lives are:

%

Buildings 2 - 12.5

Carpark and Services 2.5 - 20

Winstones Plant and Equipment 6 - 36 

Course Improvements 2 - 20

Course Plant and Equipment 7.2 - 50 

Golf Services 7 - 33.33

Furniture and Fittings 10 - 33.33

Administration Office Equipment 6 - 40

Residual values are estimated to be Nil.

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at 
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate

g) Statement of cash flows

The following are the definitions of the terms used in the Statement of Cash 
Flows:

• Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at bank and in hand and
short term deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or less 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

• Investing activities are those activities relating to acquisition, holding
and disposal of property, plant and equipment and investments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  continued

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT



33

• Financing activities are those activities which result in a change in 
the size and composition of the capital structure of the Club.  This 
includes both equity and debt not falling within the definition of cash

• Operating activities include all transactions and other events that are 
not investing or financing activities.

h)  Equity
Equity is the member’s interest in the Club measured as the difference 
between total assets and total liabilities. Equity is made up of the following 
component: 

ACCUMULATED COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE
Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense is the Club’s 
accumulated surplus or deficit since the formation of the Club adjusted for 
transfers to/from specific reserves.

i) Income tax

No provision has been made for income tax in the financial statements 
because the Club is a registered charity and is therefore exempt from 
income tax.        

j)  Goods and services tax
Items of income and expenditure are stated exclusive of Goods and Services 
Tax. All items in the statement of financial position are net of GST, with the 
exception of receivables and payables, which include GST.

k)  Inventory
Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that 
inventory was received through non-exchange transactions (excluding 
donations), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date of 
acquisition.

After initial recognition, inventories held for resale are valued at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

l) Leases

OPERATING LEASES
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and 
benefits of ownership of the leased items are classified as operating leases.  
Payments under these leases are recognised as expenses on a straight line 
basis over the lease term.

FINANCE LEASES
Leases which effectively transfer to the Club substantially all the risks and 
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as finance 
leases.  These are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the asset or 
the present value of the minimum lease payments.  The leased assets and 
corresponding lease liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial 
position.  
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Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost Accumulated Depreciation Net Book 
Value

 2022 Opening Cost Additions Disposals Closing Cost

Opening 
Accumulated 
Depreciation Depreciation Disposals

Closing 
Accumulated 
Depreciation

Closing Net 
Book Value

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Buildings
Total Buildings  4,562,128  116,516  -  4,678,644  1,355,293  160,056  -  1,515,349  3,163,295 

House Furniture & 
Fixtures
Furniture & Fixtures  257,753  -  -  257,753  225,492  11,368  -  236,860  20,893 

Winstones –  
Plant & Equipment
 Plant & Equipment  219,034  3,492  -  222,526  165,680  10,807  -  176,487  46,039 

Administration - Office 
Equipment
Office Equipment  73,778  -  -  73,778  60,710  8,195  -  68,905  4,873 

Golf Services
Furniture, Plant & 
Equipment

 989,910  14,678  5,560  999,028  141,498  171,620  2,502  310,616  688,412 

Course
Plant & Equipment  1,600,003  55,650  15,118  1,640,535  1,267,848  82,277  14,146  1,335,979  304,556 
Course Improvements  6,977,320  183,329  -  7,160,649  3,195,803  349,671  -  3,545,474  3,615,175 
Total Course  8,577,323  238,979  15,118  8,801,184  4,463,651  431,948  14,146  4,881,453  3,919,731 

Other
Carpark & Services  134,957  -  -  134,957  83,188  3,287  -  86,475  48,482 
Total Other  134,957  -  -  134,957  83,188  3,287  -  86,475  48,482 

Total Capitalised Fixed 
Assets  14,814,883  373,665  20,678  15,167,870  6,495,512  797,281  16,648  7,276,145  7,891,725 

Work In Progress - - - - - - - -  60,250 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment  7,951,975 

Work In Progress relates to the kitchen upgrade and new nets (3rd hole & driving range). 

The Club disposed of assets costing $82,738 (surplus on disposal of asset - $5,515) in the current year, (2021: $313,469).

The Property, Plant and Equipment are pledged as security over the overdraft facility.  Refer note 7.
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5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
    2021

   Cost Accumulated Depreciation Net Book Value
$ $

Buildings
Total Buildings  4,562,128  1,355,293  3,206,835 

House Furniture & Fixtures
Furniture & Fixtures  257,753  225,492  32,261 

Winstones - Plant & Equipment
Plant & Equipment  219,034  165,680  53,354 

Administration - Office Equipment
Office Equipment  76,513  63,444  13,069 

Club Services
Furniture, Plant & Equipment  989,930  132,943  856,987 

Course
Plant & Equipment  1,600,003  1,276,424  323,579 
Course Improvements  6,977,320  3,195,803  3,781,517 

Total Course  8,577,323  4,472,227  4,105,096 

Other
Carpark & Services  134,957  83,189  51,768 

Total Capitalised Property, Plant and Equipment  14,817,638  6,498,268  8,319,370 

Work In Progress  75,000  -  75,000

Total Property, Plant and Equipment  14,892,638  6,498,268  8,394,370 

Work in Progress/Contracts for Capital Expenditure 
Work in progress only relates to one project  of development works that is not yet completed.  

 2022  2021
 $  $ 

Property, Plant and Equipment Capitalised
Buildings  116,516  2,155,882 
Winstones - Plant and Equipment  3,492  30,195 
Course Improvements  183,329  -   
Course Plant & Machinery  55,650  216,019 
Club Services and Other  14,678  787,529 
Administration Office Equipment  -  1,648
Total Property, Plant and Equipment Capitalised  373,665  3,191,273 

Reconciling Items: 
Work in Progress 2021 (75,000) 75,000
Work in Progress 2020 - (140,761)
Work in Progress 2022 60,250 -
Finance Lease Additions 2021 - (446,261)
Total Property, Plant and Equipment Addition  358,915  2,679,251 

Creditors
Creditors 2020 - Property, Plant and Equipment - 42,621
Creditors 2021 - Property, Plant and Equipment 93,512 (93,512)
Creditors 2022 - Property, Plant and Equipment (13,800) -
Total Cash Applied to Property, Plant and Equipment and Course Development  438,627  2,628,360 
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Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
5.2 Depreciation Summary

 2022  2021
 $  $ 

Facilities  174,711  92,832 
Winstones - Plant & Equipment  10,807  10,789 
Administration  8,195  11,724 
Club Services  121,209  69,747 
Course Plant & Equipment  132,688  128,737 
Course Improvements  349,671  348,493 
Total Depreciation  797,281  662,322 

5.3 Notional Disposal of prior Course Improvements
 2022  2021

 $  $ 
Notional disposal of prior course improvements  -  - 

As course redevelopment takes place, each of the 18 greens undergoes some redevelopment.  As a consequence, a portion of past course improvements 
such as drainage, greens and fairways is renewed.  Accordingly, an amount of $23,000 will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue 
and Expense against past course improvements as each green is completed. There were no new greens completed in the current year and therefore 
Notional Disposal is nil.

5.4 Inventory
 2022  2021

 $  $ 
Winstones  32,755  25,660 
Greenkeepers Stock  39,994  32,948 
Range Balls  69,675  38,138 
Retail  616,278  435,137 

 758,702  531,883 

In accordance with our suppliers standard terms of trade, some of the inventory held is subject to the usual condition of retention of title by the supplier 
until they are paid.

5.5 Members Match Funds
The balance of net (unspent) Match Income arising from volunteer activities are carried forward at year end. 
A summary of funds as at 30 September is as follows: 

 2022  2021
 $  $ 

Net Balance on Hand  26,413  35,581 

5.6 Finance Lease Liability
The Club has entered into a rental agreement with UDC Finance to rent 24 golf carts with the option to purchase. The rental agreement commenced 
September 2021 for a period of 48 months at an interest rate of 5.90 % per annum.

The Club has entered into a rental agreement with John Deere to purchase a tractor. The agreement commenced April 2021 for a period of 36 months at 
an interest rate of 2.40 % per annum.

The Club has entered into a rental agreement with John Deere to purchase a TE Gator. The agreement commenced July 2021 for a period of 36 months at 
an interest rate of 2.40 % per annum. 

The Club has entered into a lease agreement with De Lage Landen Limited to lease a Toro ProCore 864 Aerator with a  right to purchase. The lease 
agreement commenced April 2021 for a period of 60 months. 

The Club has entered into a lease agreement with De Lage Landen Limited to lease a Toro Groundmaster 4300-D mower. The lease agreement 
commenced 20 November 2018 for a period of 48 months. 

The Club has entered into a lease agreement with De Lage Landen Limited to lease a Toro Groundmaster 4000-D mower. The lease agreement 
commenced 25 January 2019 for a period of 48 months.

 2022  2021
 $  $ 

Total Liability  329,488  482,960 
Less Future Finance Charges  24,819  45,951 

 304,669  437,009 
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Less than one year  126,614  153,472 
Between one and five year  178,055  283,537 
Greater than five years  -    -   

 304,669  437,009 

5.7 Members’ Loan Scheme - Unsecured
Interest Rate

Loan Scheme
started 2018 Maturity date Loan amount $10,000 - $75,000  2022  2021 
2 Years 31-May-20 4.75%  -    -   
4 Years 31-May-22 5.50%  -  357,500
Loan Scheme
started 2019 Maturity date Loan amount $10,000 - $75,000  2022  2021
2 Years 31-May-21 4.75%  -    -   
4 Years 31-May-23 5.50%  235,000  235,000 
Loan Scheme
started 2020 Maturity date Loan amount $50,000 - $100,000  2022  2021
3 Years 31-Mar-23 4.25%  225,000  225,000 
5 Years 31-Mar-25 5.00%  375,000  375,000 
Loan Scheme
started 2020 Maturity date Loan amount $40,000 - $75,000  2022  2021
3 Years 15-Sep-23 4.00%  180,000  180,000 
5 Years 15-Sep-25 4.50%  220,000  220,000 
Loan Scheme
started 2021 Maturity date Loan amount $35,000 - $75,000  2022  2021
2 Years 31-May-23 4.00%  230,000  230,000 
4 Years 31-May-25 4.50%  120,000  120,000 
Loan Scheme
started 2021 Maturity date Loan amount $10,000 - $100,000  2022  2021 
4 Years 31-May-26 5.50%  350,000  -   

Current  870,000  357,500 
Non-Current  1,065,000  1,585,000 

2 and 4 Year Loans – started 2018

Two new loan schemes; 2-year and 4- year options were offered to the members in 2018 year on maturity of the previous 5-year loan scheme. The total 
of the combined loans cannot exceed $400,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 1st of June 2018 and the 2-year scheme matures on 31st May 2020 
and the 4-year scheme matures on 31st May 2022. Interest of 4.75% for the 2-year scheme and 5.50% for the 4-year scheme are applicable and are 
payable at the end of each year.

2 and 4 Year Loans – started 2019

Two new loan schemes; 2-year and 4- year options were offered to the members this year. The total of the combined loans cannot exceed $400,000. Both 
loan schemes commenced on 1st of June 2018 and the 2-year scheme matures on 31st May 2021 and the 4-year scheme matures on 31st May 2023. 
Interest of 4.75% for the 2-year scheme and 5.50% for the 4-year scheme are applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

3 and 5 Year Loans – started 2020

Two new loan schemes; 3-year and 5- year options were offered to the members this year for the purpose of funding the driving range project. The total 
of the combined loans cannot exceed $700,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 1st of  April 2020 and the 3-year scheme matures on 31st March 
2023 and the 5-year scheme matures on 31st March 2025. Interest of 4.25% for the 3-year scheme and 5% for the 5-year scheme are applicable and are 
payable at the end of each year.

3 and 5 Year Loans – started 2020

Two new loan schemes; 3-year and 5- year options were offered to the members this year for the purpose of funding the driving range project. The total 
of the combined loans cannot exceed $400,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 16th of September 2020 and the 3-year scheme matures on 15th 
September 2023 and the 5-year scheme matures on 15th September  2025. Interest of 4% for the 3-year scheme and 4.50% for the 5-year scheme are 
applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

2 and 4 Year Loans – started 2021

Two new loan schemes; 2-year and 4- year options were offered to the members this year. The total of the combined loans cannot exceed $350,000. Both 
loan schemes commenced on 1st of June 2021 and the 2-year scheme matures on 31st May 2023 and the 4-year scheme matures on 31st May 2025. 
Interest of 4% for the 2-year scheme and 4.50% for the 4-year scheme are applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

4 Year Loans - started 2022

A new 4 - year loan scheme option was offered to the members this year. This loan is to cover the maturity of the previous 4-year loan scheme. The loan 
will assist in funding ongoing development. The total of the combined loans cannot exceed $350,000. The loan scheme commenced on 1st of June 2022 
and matures on 31st May 2026. Interest of 5.5% is applicable and is payable at the end of each year.
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Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
5.8 Bank Loan

 2022  2021
 $  $ 

ANZ Business Loan  725,000  800,000 

In March 2020 the Club arranged a loan facility to the value of $800,000 for the purpose of funding the driving range project. 
$400,000 was drawn down in March 2020 and the second $400,000 was drawn down in April 2021.

This loan was varied in December 2021 to mature on 31st October 2025. $75,000 of the loan was repaid in September 2022. 
The current interest rate applicable is 6.7%.  

5.9 Advance Subscriptions
Subscription notices for the 2022/2023 year dated 1 October 2022 were mailed prior to year end and any monies received 
prior to balance date are treated as subscriptions and corporate income in advance. This income received in advance will 
be recognised as revenue in the 2022/2023 year in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4a. Any refund of annual 
subscriptions will only be made at the discretion of the Board and only in special circumstances.

6  INCOME & EXPENDITURE
INCOME
6.1 Membership Revenue

2022 2021
$ $

Membership Subscriptions  2,062,696  1,984,659 
Entrance Fees  227,046  271,457 
Development Levy  269,171  250,817 
Finance Levy  65,609  52,704 
Instalment Levy  20,306  18,747 
Member Services  30,244  30,427 
Total  2,675,072  2,608,811 

6.2 Club Services Revenue
2022 2021

$ $
Winstones | Tui (F&B)  1,137,383  1,226,842 
Retail  1,286,406  1,207,020 
Velocity  933,407  543,539 
Velocity F&B  448,758  197,034 
Green Fees  175,930  206,477 
Coaching  324,880  193,733 
Other  63,119  73,746 
Total  4,369,883  3,648,391 

6.3 Sundry Income
2022 2021

$ $
Rental Income  123,852  121,522 
Sundry  74,722  99,047 
Total  198,574  220,569 

EXPENDITURE
6.4 Staff Costs Summary

2022 2021
$ $

Course & Env  801,882  782,857 
Clubhouse | Facilities  62,888  36,770 
Administration & Management  545,542  575,182 
Club Services
Winstones Staff  800,975  727,698 
Golf Services & Retail Staff  642,141  536,952 
Velocity Staff  461,286  290,753 
Total  3,314,714  2,950,212 
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6.5 Club Services
2022 2021

$ $
Staff Costs  1,904,402  1,555,403 
Velocity Overheads  250,465  173,630 
Winstones | Tui Overheads  51,891  76,505 
Golf Services & Retail Overheads  47,119  54,096 
Winstones | Tui Cost of Sales  462,512  590,267 
Retail Cost of Sales  957,290  917,165 
Velocity Cost of Sales (F&B)  179,503  -   
Coaching Expenses  310,355  207,650 
Total  4,163,537  3,574,716 

6.6 Course
2022 2021

$ $
Staff Costs  801,882  782,857 
Course Maintenance  359,070  351,747 
Plant Repairs & Maintenance  89,653  84,650 
Fuel and Oil  43,846  26,111 
Course Administration  18,293  16,690 
Total  1,312,744  1,262,055 

6.7 Facilities
2022 2021

$ $
Staff Costs - Clubhouse  62,888  36,770 
Cleaning | Laundry | Supplies  73,954  74,614 
Utilities  68,912  66,078 
Security Fees  16,020  22,520 
General  31,854  22,649 
Rent  130,000  130,000 
Rates & Insurance  87,875  79,786 
Building Repairs & Maintenance  186,665  236,616 
Total  658,168  669,033 

6.8 Administration
2022 2021

$ $
Staff Costs and Management Services  545,542  575,182 
Printing and Stationery  20,180  39,245 
Computer and Telecommunication  135,383  118,345 
Accounting Services  25,728  19,284 
Audit Fees  9,500  9,135 
Professional Fees  53,773  42,935 
General  100,825  47,338 
Total  890,931  851,464 

6.9 Finance
2022 2021

$ $
Interest to Members  92,463  90,292 
Bank Interest  68,305  39,793 
Lease  Interest  21,133  7,853 
Sundry Bank Fees  8,327  6,724 
Credit Card Fees  48,434  43,570 
Interest Received (2) (653)
Total  238,660  187,579 
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Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
7.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 2021
$ $

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:
Cash on Hand  1,800  1,800 
Cash in Bank  434,583  347,468 
Bank Call Account  25  25 
Bank - GBP & USD  2,073  1,731 

 438,481  351,024 

Subject to the following, there were no restrictions over any of the cash and cash equivalents held by the Club.

The Club has an overdraft facility of $850,000 (2021: $500,000) with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group. The applicable interest rate for this 
facility is 11.85%. This facility is secured by a general security agreement over all assets and a first registered mortgage over the buildings, refer to 
note 5.1. The facility is undrawn on at year end.   

8.  RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
$ $

Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade Receivables  85,424  32,208 
Future Entrance Fee Receivable  71,861  -   
Impairment Allowance  -    -   
Other  6,634  10,700 

 163,919  42,908 

At 30 September, the ageing analysis of receivables from exchange transactions is as follows:

Total Due < 30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days >90 days
$ $ $ $ $

2022  85,424  62,287  6,210  750  16,177 
2021  32,208  4,500  3,201  3,546  20,961 

2022 2021
$ $

Non-exchange transactions
GST Receivable  28,118  -   

9.  RELATED PARTY
Related party transactions and balances
The Club entered into a transaction with the following Board member during the year:   Andrew Millard - Project Management.  The transaction was not 
material, and no balances are outstanding at year end. 

Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation 2022 2021

$ $
Key Management Personnel Compensation  1,221,231  1,061,639 
Senior Staff (FTE) 11.5 11.5

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Club’s financial assets and financial liabilities.

i. Classification of financial instruments
 
2022

Financial  
Assets

Financial 
Liabilities

Loans and 
receivables

Amortised cost

$ $
Cash and Cash Equivalents  438,481 
Receivables from Exchange Transactions  163,919 
Payables (excluding Accruals)  -    439,361 
Finance Lease Payable  -    304,669 
Loans and Borrowings  -    2,660,000 

 602,400  3,404,030 
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2021
Financial  

Assets
Financial 

Liabilities
Loans and 

receivables
Amortised cost

$ $
Cash and Cash Equivalents  351,024 
Receivables from Exchange Transactions  42,908 
Payables (excluding Accruals)  -  330,018
Finance Lease Payable  -  437,009
Loans and Borrowings  -  2,742,500

 393,932  3,509,527 

11. TRADE PAYABLES

Exchange transactions 2022 2021
$ $

Accounts Payable  302,770  150,686 
Interest Accrual  35,410  35,524 
Other Accruals  373,569  453,428 

 711,749  639,638 

Non-exhanged transactions 2022 2021
$ $

GST Payable  -  1,474
 -  1,474

12. COMMITMENTS
(a)  Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments as at the reporting date. (2021:  Nil).
(b)  Operating Commitments
As at 30 September 2022 the Club has entered into the various contracts:  

2022 20210
No later than One Year  230,904  230,904 
Later than One Year and No Later than Five Years  771,446  872,351 
Later than Five Years  910,000  1,040,000 

 1,912,350  2,143,255 

The property lease with the Auckland City Council has 69 years to run. The annual rental from the 22 October 2013 is $130,000 (GST exclusive) with 
rent reviews every 21 years. The next rent review date is 21 October 2034. 
The above commitments include the Clubs commitment to rent the property only until the next rent review in 2034.  
The Club entered into a rental agreement with Topgolf Limited to rent the Toptracer system for 60 months. This commitment ends on 30 April 2026.

13. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
There are no contingent assets or liabilities at the reporting date. (2021: Nil).

14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
The Club has no subsequent events to report at balance date (2021: Nil).

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Some comparative figures were changed to conform with this years disclosures.
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Budget for the 2022/2023 

FINANCIAL YEAR
(Unaudited) 
2023 Budget 2022 Actual

(Unaudited) 
2022 Budget 

$  $  $ 
INCOME
Membership Revenue  2,980,000  2,675,072  2,601,000 
Partnership | Sponsorship  335,000  316,651  305,000 
Club Services  4,911,000  4,369,883  4,447,500 
Other Income  210,000  650,805  370,000 
Total Income  8,436,000  8,012,411  7,723,500 

EXPENDITURE
Course & Env  1,542,460  1,312,744  1,307,000 
Club Services  4,108,620  4,163,537  3,757,500 
Facilities  742,000  658,168  669,000 
Administration  932,000  890,931  834,000 
Finance  235,980  238,660  198,000 
Total Expenditure  7,561,060  7,264,040  6,765,500 

Net Operating Surplus before Depreciation  874,940  748,371  958,000 
Depreciation  850,000  797,281  830,000 
Net Operating Surplus / (Deficit)  24,940  (48,910)  128,000 

This Budget for the 2022/2023 Financial year does not form part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2022. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET:
 (Unaudited) 
2023 Budget 

 (Unaudited) 
2024 Budget

 $ 
Funds Available from Operations:
Net Operating Surplus / (Deficit)  24,940
Add:  Depreciation for year  850,000 

 874,940 
The Club intends to use these funds for:

Capital Expenditure Budget:
Course Improvements  375,000  450,000 
Course Plant and Machinery  224,500  265,000 
Buildings and Clubhouse  500,000  -   
Other  20,000  10,000 
Total  1,119,500  725,000 

This budget for the 2022/2023 financial year does not form part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2022. 
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WITH THANKS
The wide range of events and activities in our club would not happen without the time and expertise freely given by so many of our members.  
In addition to committee members the board wishes to acknowledge the many contributions made which greatly enhance the benefits enjoyed by all 
members of the Remuera Golf Club. 

• Referees 

• AGA Delegates 

• Men’s Pennants 

• Women’s Interclub 

• Junior Co-Ordinator 

• Junior Sponsor 

• Dads’ Army/Volunteers 

Esther Cowper, Chris Carroll

James Kim, Wendy Williams  

James Eng, Manu Taylor, Michael Maingay, Paul Hurtley, Rakesh Patel, Chris Hanley, Darren Soo

Pauline Harrision, Pam Donnelly, Joan Reeves, Esther Cowper, Jo Hollies, Nicola Judd, Karen Tapper, Toni Sinclair

Richard Jones

Rod MacNeil (Barfoot & Thompson)

Kevin Grogan, Jim Holmes, Brett Morpeth, Barry Wilkie, Graham MacKinlay, John Childrehouse, Selwyn Wong, Bruce Carnachan, Rolo Gillespie, Bryan  
Davies, Jim Greenwood, John Reeves, Mark Evans, Pierce Brown, Sandy Grigg, Graeme Riley, George Huang, David Hartstone, Tim Haig

Thank you to all of our volunteer board and committee members.

• Board Members Ian Braddock (Chairman and Club Captain), Ken Taylor (Club President), James Kim (Men’s Golf Captain), Wendy Williams (Women’s Golf Captain),  
Pauline Harrison, Grant Marshall, Andrew Millard, Megan King 

There are other contributing members not named on this page; please also accept our sincere thanks.
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KEY PARTNERSHIPS
We acknowledge and thank the following key partnerships  
and community groups for their continued support.

Golf New Zealand
Auckland Golf
Orakei Local Board
Winger Motors
Panasonic
Fulton Hogan
PGA NZ
Asahi Beverages
Bluestar
Blues Rugby

KEY COMMUNITY GROUPS
St Andrew’s Village
Men’s Shed Auckland East
Remuera Golf Bridge Club
St Johns | Remuera Friendship Club
St Johns | Remuera | Newmarket Rotary Clubs
Rotary District 9920
Business Network International (BNI)
Rebus Mt Hobson
U3A
Auckland North Harbour Referees Association
Remuera Garden Club

CLUB COMMITTEES
Finance & Audit Committee Maurice Kidd (Chair), Ian Braddock, Mike Gault, Jan Martin, Vicki Salmon, Brett Winstanley, Chris Davies, Megan King

Course Technical Group Andrew Millard (Chair), Ian Braddock, Michael Bartlett, Greg Kenward, Grant Marshall, Grant Puddicombe,  
Chris Davies, Spencer Cooper, Justine Jorgensen, Megan King

Membership Committee Pauline Harrison (Chair), Geoff Burns, Grant Marshall, Karee Oates, Chris Davies, Giselle Pascual, Kate Morgan-Rees, 
Stephanie Grant

Golf & Match Committee James Kim (Chair), Wendy Williams, Peter McCormack, Esther Cowper, Barry Hall, Cullam Murchison,  
Stephanie Grant, Callum Cameron, Toni Sinclair

Women’s Committee Wendy Williams (Chair), Villia Cheng, Nicola Judd, Megan King, Paula Hollies, Stephanie Grant, Anna Macaulay,  
Bev Aynsley, Giselle Pascual, Sarah Andrews

Club Services Group Geoff Burns (Chair), David Burton, Megan King, Tony Dangerfield, Chris Davies
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CLUB MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
An effective governance structure providing the club with committees, policies, procedures and processes administered under the guidance of an elected board 
of directors.

Core Areas 2022-2024 Actions / Outcomes How are we progressing

Strategy & Policy Ongoing implementation of the vision document

Update and implement where necessary to ensure our culture is aligned to our 
values and behaviours

Review policies and practices supporting the vision statements to ensure 
consistent and fit for purpose

Refresh & update documentation and implementation, including:
• risk, delegated authority, membership inc. diversity and inclusion.

Structure Ensure the board and committee structures enable us to deliver our vision 
including position descriptions, attributes, composition and terms of reference

Design and implement induction, training and professional development for:
• board members, committee members and staff
• compile a club governance manual
• review and upgrade the club constitution
• ongoing implementation and refinement of communication plan.

Facilities Prepare a LT buildings/facilities maintenance plan

Prepare a LT vision buildings/site plan. 

Financial Ensure the club is financially sustainable into the long-term including 
continuing to diversify income streams.

Management Ensure the new management structure is successfully implemented and 
delivering expected outcomes

Become employer of choice 

Continue and enhance the club’s “green mission” including maintaining GEO 
certification and continuous improvement 

Plan to enhance our stakeholder relations and a range of multi -partner 
alliances including local boards, Council, Iwi, news media outlets, other golf 
clubs, corporate partners.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

BOARD ATTENDANCE
There were eight formal board meetings held between 2nd February to 2nd December 2021. Board members also attended committee meetings 
throughout the year.

Meetings Attended

Ian Braddock (Chairman & Club Captain) 8

Ken Taylor (President) 7

James Kim (Men’s Golf Captain) 8

Wendy Williams (Women’s Golf Captain) 7

Pauline Harrison (Chair of Membership) 7

Andrew Millard (Chair of CTG) 7

Megan King 6

Grant Marshall 7

RGC MANAGEMENT & GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Our structure for club decisions, governance and management is centrally focused on delivering the best for our members.

BOARD
• Represents members
• Makes Policy
• Delegates management of the club

GENERAL MANAGER
• Operates club - through delegated authority
• Implements policy

Membership and 
Engagement

• Membership 
• Corporate partnerships
• Communications
• Stakeholder engagement
• Retail, events and hospitality

marketing 

Club  
Services

• Golf operations
• Velocity
• Coaching
• Winstones / Tui
• Events
• Retail
• Fitting

Course and  
Environment

• Green keeping
• Environment
• Sustainability

MEMBERSHIP

COURSE  
TECHNICAL GROUP

CLUB SERVICES 
ADVISORY

FINANCE & AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

GOLF  
& MATCH

WOMEN”S  
COMMITTEE

RGC MEMBERS
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GREAT GOLF.
LIFELONG FRIENDS.

2022
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RGC   09 524 4288  
Golf Hub   09 524 1406

PO Box 87-180 Meadowbank 1742 
120 Abbotts Way, Remuera Auckland 1050

office@remueragolfclub.com 

www.remueragolfclub.com | www.velocityrange.com

RemueraGolfClub
Coaching@remueragolfclub
WinstonesRGC
TheGolfShop

OFFICE | ADMINISTRATION
Mon – Fri   8.30am – 5.00pm
General Manager     Chris Davies | gm@remueragolfclub.com 
Accounts  Stacy Liao | accounts@remueragolfclub.com 
Enquiries  enquiries@remueragolfclub.com 

MEMBERSHIP & MARKETING
Director of Membership & Marketing    Karee Oates | kareeo@remueragolfclub.com

Vanessa Baxter | membership@remueragolfclub.com 

Tony Dangerfield | tonyd@remueragolfclub.com 
Josh Butler | golfshop@remueragolfclub.com
Abby Brooking  | events@remueragolfclub.com

coaching@remueragolfclub.com
velocityrange@remueragolfclub.com
Stephanie Grant | golfadmin@remueragolfclub.com
Vikash Kumar | winstones@remueragolfclub.com

Spencer Cooper | course@remueragolfclub.com 

Membership & Communications  

CLUB SERVICES
Director of Club Services 
Retail Services 
Events 

OFF COURSE GOLF
Coaching  
Velocity Range 
Golf Operations Manager 
Winstones  

COURSE
Superintendent    
Assistant Superintendent   Callum Cameron | callumc@remueragolfclub.com 

CONTACT INFORMATION



Club Management  Phone 09 524 4288
Email  enquiries@remueragolfclub.com
Address  120 Abbotts Way, Remuera, Auckland

www.remueragolfclub.com


